1969

**Gary S. Hansen, Et Al., for Himself and for and on Behalf of 191
Other Persons Similarly Situated v. Brotherhood Of Locomotive
Firemen and Enginemen and 844 Of Brotherhood Of Locomotive
Firemen and Enginemen : Brief of Defendants-Appellants**

NATURE OF THE CASE

This is an action commenced by Gary S. Hansen and others for themselves and “for and on behalf of 191 other persons similarly situated” seeking damages against defendants based upon alleged contracts and breaches of fiduciary duty.

DISPOSITION IN THE LOWER COURT

The case was tried to the court without a jury and the court found for plaintiffs. The ruling of the lower court was based upon its findings of fact and conclusions of law filed and entered herein in the record at pages 579 through 595.

RELIEF SOUGHT ON APPEAL

Defendants seek a reversal of the judgment in the lower court.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

This action arose out of a National Labor Relations Board (herein referred to as "NLRB") election campaign wherein the Brotherhood of Locomotive Firemen and Enginemen (herein called "BLF&E" or "Brotherhood") was seeking collective-bargaining rights of a group of employees at the Kennecott Copper Mine. The contract of these employees was held at that time by Local 485 of the Mine, Mill and Smelter Workers Union (herein referred to as "Mine-Mill"). The campaign began in the middle part of September, 1966, and ran through the 21st of June, 1967.

From the beginning, in September 1966, through February or March, 1967, organizers working for the Brotherhood solicited membership from the group then represented by Mine-Mill. Among the numerous benefits of the Brotherhood which were advertised in the solicitation were the constitutional provisions regarding strike

benefit payments. Employees who joined during this time were promised strike benefits according to the Constitution of the Brotherhood if they would join and vote for the Brotherhood in this campaign.

From and after February 1, and possibly as late as March 24, 1967, some of the organizers involved locally represented that strike benefits would be paid to those who joined the union, regardless of the outcome of the NLRB election.

The NLRB election was held on June 22, 1967, and the BLF&E lost. Subsequently, Mine-Mill was again certified as the bargaining representative of a unit including plaintiffs herein. The BLF&E has never at any time been bargaining agent for said unit.

On July 14 and 15, 1967, a strike was instituted at Kennecott Copper Corporation properties by all of the unions involved. The BLF&E called the members in *its* bargaining unit on strike per an authorization by President Gilbert at 12:01 p.m., July 15, 1967. (Exhibit P-138, R. 798.) Prior to that time, some of the other unions had instituted their strike. (R. 797; R. 963.)

On or about July 31 or August 1, 1967, the first BLF&E strike benefit payroll was prepared and submitted to the Grand Lodge. This payroll contained the names of the plaintiffs in this action, under erroneous job classifications expressly contra to a letter of instruction received by Martin Jensen from R. R. Bryant,

Exhibit D-191, and expressly contra the instructions on the blank payroll forms sent out by the Brotherhood, Exhibit P-78. This payroll was rejected by President Gilbert and returned to the Local Lodge with the instructions that only those members of the Brotherhood in the bargaining unit *represented* by the BLF&E and covered by the contract at Kennecott should be included on it.

Subsequently, a revised payroll was sent to the Brotherhood which did not contain the names of the plaintiffs in this action. That payroll was paid. Plaintiffs in this action did not receive strike benefits at any time during the strike.

President Gilbert of the Grand Lodge, BLF&E, informed Lodge 844 and the plaintiffs of his interpretation of the Constitution which forbade payment of strike benefits to these plaintiffs. He also informed them at this time that their only remedies were: (1) An appeal to the Convention; (2) A plea to the Finance Committee for special assistance. (R. 1243-45.)

Subsequently, a plea was instituted to the Finance Committee of the Grand Lodge of the BLF&E. The Finance Committee voted 5 against and 3 for payment of special strike assistance. (Exhibit P-29.) Therefore, no strike assistance was authorized for these persons. However, the Finance Committee did authorize an amount of \$10,000 to be paid into a special fund for hardship cases among these people. (Exhibit P-29.)

Plaintiffs did not make an appeal to the Convention of the Brotherhood on the interpretation placed upon the Constitution by President Gilbert. (R. 765; R. 783-84.)

During the membership campaign, each member solicited was given a copy of the Constitution or a copy was made readily available to him. (R. 1060-61.)

POINT I

THE FINDINGS OF FACT UPON WHICH THE JUDGMENT BELOW IS BASED ARE NOT SUPPORTED BY THE EVIDENCE.

The trial court erred in its first finding of fact that plaintiff Stephen James Oliver was a member of defendant union at the time of the strike involved in this suit. There is uncontradicted evidence from the records of defendants to the contrary. (R. 998; R. 924; R. 938; Exhibit D-190.) Exhibit D-190, which was admitted as evidence, indicates that Mr. Oliver was never a member of defendant unions. This exhibit was prepared from the records of the BLF&E by Martin Jensen, Financial Secretary of the Local. (R. 1253-54.) Further, Oliver's name does not appear on the initial strike payroll, Exhibit P-78, or on the defendant's lists, Exhibit P-75 and P-76. The only evidence presented by Oliver was his testimony that he signed some papers. He gave no proof of making any dues payments and the records show he made none.

The court's first finding of fact that Heriberto Esquivel is a proper plaintiff is not supported by the

pleadings. The record in this case indicates clearly that this man never intervened as a plaintiff. The final notice of joinder and representation of plaintiffs filed by counsel for plaintiffs was filed on the 24th of May, 1968. This notice contained a list of all the parties who were plaintiffs in Exhibit I, Part A, attached thereto, and it also contained a list of all those possible plaintiffs who had not intervened as Exhibit I, Part B. The name of Heriberto Esquivel is found on Exhibit I, Part B, indicating that he had not intervened as of that time. (R. 232-41.) There were no interventions after that time.

Part of the court's sixth finding of fact is not supported by the evidence. The evidence is clear that the Constitution of the BLF&E itself conditions payment of strike benefits and prohibits the granting of strike benefits to members not in the bargaining unit represented by the union. (Exhibit P-1, pages 195 through 199; R. 781-82.) Further, there is evidence in the record in this case that organizers of defendants did condition strike benefits offered to plaintiffs as provided in the Constitution of the BLF&E. (Exhibits D-152; D-160; D-162.)

In addition, as shown by Exhibit D-190, most of the plaintiffs had already become members of the BLF&E prior to the time any representations were made by anyone regarding strike benefits regardless of the outcome of the election. The evidence indicates that said representations were not made until some time between February 1 and March 24, 1967. (R. 697-98; R. 857; R. 891.) Thus, these representations are wholly irrelevant and

immaterial as to all plaintiffs who had joined previous to that time and cannot be the basis of any recovery here.

Finding number six is not supported by evidence where it states that representations were made by *authorized* representatives of defendants. These representations were devised solely by L. L. Iman. There is not a scintilla of evidence in this record to indicate any actual authority of Iman to make any promises inconsistent with the Constitution of the BLF&E. The testimony of President Gilbert is clear on the fact that Iman was a field representative and was empowered only to sell insurance and solicit members. (R. 724.) He was not empowered to interpret the Constitution of the Brotherhood, nor was he empowered to make promises *ultra vires* the Constitution of the Brotherhood. (R. 761.) Constitution of the BLF&E, Article 16. (Exhibit P-1.) Any so-called authority which he possessed was, by his own admission, based upon his own notions and ideas of what should be done (R. 1159-61; 1176.) Even the evidence of plaintiffs in this action proves this. Mr. Trujillo, one of the plaintiffs and formerly a special general organizer for the Brotherhood, indicated in his testimony that he suggested to Mr. Iman the use of the word "guarantee" since "these people" had received so many promises they "are sick and tired of promises." Mr. Iman then proceeded without authority from the Grand Lodge to use the word "guarantee" in his fliers and instructed the special general organizers to use this term in their solicitation. (R. 1100.) This evidence clearly shows that Iman was taking instructions from no one in the Grand Lodge, but had simply taken unto

himself the authority to make these promises and guarantees. (R. 1160-62.) There is no evidence to the contrary to be found in the record.

The seventh finding of fact entered by the court below is in error in holding that plaintiffs Gene A. Beck, D. P. Bennett, Glen Bennett, Carter, James, Kendrick, Tsutsui, Gale and T. N. Turner were induced by or relied upon any offers or representations or guarantees of defendants. These plaintiffs did not appear at trial, they did not testify, they did not answer interrogatories of defendants, and further, they were specifically excluded from a stipulation entered into by counsel for both plaintiffs and defendants regarding evidence of a contract and evidence of reliance. In this stipulation, found in the record at pages 1060 through 1062, the parties stipulated to certain evidence in order to shorten the time of the trial. At that time Mr. Rooker, counsel for plaintiffs, made the following statement:

The foregoing stipulation does not apply to testimony that would be adduced from the following-named plaintiffs if they were called: Gene A. Beck, D. P. Bennett, Glen Bennett, Carter, James, Kendrick, Tsutsui, Gale and T. N. Turner.

As the record stands, it is completely devoid of any evidence whatsoever with regard to these plaintiffs. Thus, there is absolutely no basis in evidence for finding of fact number seven made by the trial court as it applies to these plaintiffs.

There is no evidence whatever in the record to support finding number eight as it relates to a contract

with plaintiffs Gene A. Beck, D. P. Bennett, Glen Bennett, Carter, James, Kendrick, Tsutsui, Gale and T. N. Turner for the same reasons set forth in the immediately preceding paragraph.

Further, with regard to all plaintiffs, the court's finding of a contract in this case must have been on either one of two theories. First, the facts indicate that between September, 1966, and February 1, 1967 (at the earliest, and possibly as late as March 24, 1967), organizers of the BLF&E solicited members making promises, including promises of strike benefits based upon the Constitution of the BLF&E. There is no evidence of any other representations as to strike benefits during this time. If any offer was made to constitute a contract based upon the BLF&E Constitution, these promises must be considered the offer and joining the BLF&E must be considered the acceptance.

The second possible theory of contract must be that a contract was entered into which is not based upon the BLF&E Constitution. According to the evidence, such an offer could be construed from the statements made from and after February 1, 1967, and possibly as late March 24, 1967. (R. 1181; R. 1060-62; R. 889-92.) At that time, some of those people solicited were promised strike benefits regardless of the outcome of the NLRB election. Authority for such an offer cannot be found within the Constitution of the BLF&E. Acceptance of this offer by joining the BLF&E (if it could be a basis for a contract action against the Brotherhood) would apply only to those members who joined as a

result of the offer. Members who joined prior to the above dates can in no way be said to have accepted this offer made after they joined. Hence, under this contract theory, only those members who joined after the offer was made can rely upon it as a basis for contractual recovery. The dates of membership of each of the plaintiffs in this action are set forth on the exhibit introduced through Martin Jensen and accepted in evidence as Exhibit D-190.

From the above, it can be seen that finding number eight entered by the court cannot possibly be based upon the evidence. If the contract is based upon the Constitution of the BLF&E, then the plaintiffs are also subject to the rest of the provisions of the Constitution which do not allow recovery. BLF&E Constitution Article 10, Section 3(a); Article 10, Section 3(e), (Exhibit P-1, pp. 195-97). If the contract is based upon the unconditional guarantee allegedly made by agents of defendants, then only those who joined the union after this promise was made can recover. All of the plaintiffs could not possibly recover since most of them joined the union prior to the time of this latter promise.

The schedule attached as Exhibit B (plaintiffs' Exhibit P-54 herein) to the court's finding number nine can have no relevance unless the court adopts a contract theory based upon that document and similar promises. The evidence clearly shows that the document was not distributed and the promises were not made until after February 1, 1967. (R. 889-92; R. 1060-62; R. 1181.) Any such promises, including the promise made in Exhibit B

attached to finding number nine can only apply to those members of the BLF&E who joined from and after approximately February 1, 1967. They have no relevance whatsoever with respect to those members who were already in the union at that time. Thus, such promises cannot be the basis for recovery herein as to those plaintiffs.

The finding made by the lower court in its finding number ten is contrary to the uncontradicted evidence in this record. The only person in the organization of the BLF&E authorized to approve a strike is its president. Constitution of the BLF&E, Article 9, Section 16; Article 9, Section 20(j); (Exhibits P-1.) He testified that he called a strike of those men in the bargaining unit represented by the BLF&E (R. 794-95). He further testified that under the union law he had no authority to call a strike of people who were not represented by the BLF&E. The evidence clearly shows that plaintiffs in this action were not and never have been represented by the Brotherhood. (R. 1123-24.) The evidence shows that any authority to strike granted plaintiffs in this action was granted by the Mine-Mill union which represented them at the time. (R. 1223-24.)

The court's finding number twelve is contrary to the evidence in that it states that the strike benefit payroll of July, 1967, which included the plaintiffs, was a valid and duly-authorized payroll. The uncontradicted evidence demonstrates that this payroll was invalid because it contained names of people not in the bargaining unit represented by the defendants contrary to express

instructions given to Martin Jensen by letter of July 25, 1967, and also contrary to express instructions found on the bank payroll forms upon which the payroll was submitted. Both this letter and the instructions on the forms indicate that only names of men in the bargaining units represented by the BLF&E should be included on the payroll. (Exhibits P-78 and D-191.)

Uncontradicted testimony of Martin Jensen, Secretary of the Local BLF&E, indicates that he placed plaintiffs' names on this payroll knowing they were not members of the bargaining unit represented by the BLF&E and further that he placed these plaintiffs in erroneous job classifications so as to include them on the payroll. (R. 1145-46.) This payroll was held to be invalid by the president of the BLF&E for these reasons. This was his duty under the Constitution of the BLF&E.

The court's finding number fourteen is in error because it is contrary to the evidence in exhibit form which indicates that plaintiffs were not compelled to seek outside employment by any act of defendants, but were compelled to seek outside employment by the Constitution of the BLF&E in Article 10, Section 3(i). (Exhibit P-1, pp. 197-98.)

Finding number fifteen entered by the court below is contrary to the evidence since undisputed evidence from the records of the BLF&E shows that plaintiff Oliver was never a member of the BLF&E. (Exhibit D-190; R. 924; R. 932; R. 938.) Further, the undisputed evidence in the case shows that members of the BLF&E

not in a bargaining unit represented by the BLF&E do not enjoy the same benefits of membership as do members who are in a bargaining unit represented by the BLF&E. (R. 783-84; Exhibit P-1.) Thus, these plaintiffs were not entitled to all of the benefits available to members of the BLF&E in a bargaining unit represented by the BLF&E.

Finding number sixteen by the court below is entirely without supporting evidence with regard to whether strike benefits were knowingly paid by defendants to men outside of the bargaining unit represented by the BLF&E. The evidence indicates that some of the men on the strike payroll may have been listed in erroneous job classifications and in this respect may have received benefits when they should not have received them. (R. 920; 926-27.) There is no evidence, however, to indicate that the BLF&E knowingly paid strike benefits to anyone outside of a bargaining unit which it represented.

There is no evidence in the record to support the court's finding number seventeen. Plaintiffs at no time introduced any competent evidence with respect to outside earnings of other people who had been paid strike benefits. Further, plaintiffs introduced no competent evidence respect inquiry made by the Grand Lodge as to outside earnings of those members receiving strike benefits during the strike. In addition, there is clear evidence found in Exhibit P-1 that the defendants had no duty to make any inquiry with regard to strike benefits and that the duty to disclose earnings rested upon each individual member of the BLF&E. Constitution BLF&E Article 10, Section 3(i), (Exhibit P-1, pp. 197-98).

This court should be aware that finding number eighteen originally entered by the trial court was modified and practically vitiated by that court's additional finding of fact. The additional finding of fact indicates that defendants introduced into evidence the interrogatories answered by most of the plaintiffs, which interrogatories indicate the amount of earnings of each plaintiff during the period of the strike. With respect to those plaintiffs who did not answer the interrogatories, it is the position of defendants that they cannot recover even if the court upholds the judgment below since it is impossible to compute the correct amount of said recovery.

Parts of finding number nineteen are conclusory and clearly not supported by the evidence. There is no evidence in this record whatsoever which would indicate that defendants had any fiduciary duty to pay strike benefits to *these* plaintiffs. Plaintiffs' whole theory of this action has been contract. Any fiduciary duty would have to come from the Constitution of the BLF&E (Exhibit P-1) which also contains provisions which prohibit the payment of strike benefits to these plaintiffs. That Constitution clearly creates a form of discrimination in the administration of strike funds, since it requires payment of strike funds to people participating in a "*legal strike authorized by*" the union and it forbids payment of strike benefits to all others, whether members or not. Constitution of the BLF&E Article 10, Section 3(a), (Exhibit P-1, p. 195.) See also Exhibit D-136 discussed at pp. 19-20 *infra*.

In its finding number twenty the court finds a breach of fiduciary duty based upon its finding that promises were made to plaintiffs by defendants when defendants well knew that these promises were false and that they would not pay benefits. This finding is clearly contra to the evidence in this case. There is no evidence whatever in the record that defendants or their employees ever knew at the time these alleged unconditional promises were made that they would not be kept. The evidence clearly shows that the organizer who initiated the promises, L. L. Iman, thought his interpretation of the BLF&E Constitution was correct. (R. 1175-76.) The evidence is uncontradicted in its showing that the Grand Lodge officers of the BLF&E did not know these alleged unconditional promises were being made until well after they had been made and the strike had begun and the plaintiffs had shown by plaintiffs' own evidence when one of their witnesses, Mr. Trujillo, stated that he was asked to gather up fliers after the strike had begun to send to President Gilbert to show him what went on out here. (R. 1142-43.)

Finding number twenty-one entered by the court below is unsupported by the evidence since the evidence is insufficient to support a judgment on behalf of alleged plaintiff Esquivel (he is not a plaintiff) or on behalf of alleged plaintiff Oliver (he was not a member of the BLF&E at the time of the strike). Alleged plaintiffs Gene A. Beck, D. P. Bennett, Glen Bennett, Carter, James, Kendrick, Tsutsui, Gale and T. N. Turner have produced

no evidence whatsoever indicating any contract of any kind between them and the BLF&E and further they have produced no evidence showing any reliance upon promises made by the defendant BLF&E or any damage incurred because of breach of contract or because of said reliance. Since these items are not "common questions" which can be proved for all by some members of the class, failure of these plaintiffs to adduce proof is fatal to their case.

Since the crucial findings of fact upon which the judgment below is based are not supported by evidence, the judgment below should be reversed and the case should be remanded for findings consistent with the evidence.

POINT II

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