1969

**Gary S. Hansen, Et Al., for Himself and for and on Behalf of 191
Other Persons Similarly Situated v. Brotherhood Of Locomotive
Firemen and Enginemen and 844 Of Brotherhood Of Locomotive
Firemen and Enginemen : Brief of Respondant**

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

its rules is . . . sacred" all pre-date the enactment of Section 411 of the LMRA and all involved questions of purely internal union policy. *Cleveland Orchestra Committee v. Cleveland Fed. of Musicians, et al.*, 303 F.2d 229 (6th Cir. 1962) and *Dyer v. Occidental Life Ins. Co.*, 182 F.2d 127 (9th Cir. 1950) both involve challenges to the validity of the amendments of union rules. *Platt v. Amalgamated Assn. of Street and Electrical Railway Employees of America*, 50 Utah 472, 167 Pac. 830 (1917), *Louisville and N. Ry. Co. v. Miller*, 219 Ind. 389, 38 N.E. 2d 239 (1941), *cert denied*, 317 U.S. 644 (1941), *Baruhart v. UAW*, 12 N.J. Super. 79 A.2d 88 (1951), and *Martin v. Favell*, 344 Mich. 215, 73 N.W. 2d 856 (1955) all involved appeals from imposition of union discipline.

The law recognizes a distinction between a union member's rights derived solely from his union membership and his rights arising by operation law. Although defendants contend that the plaintiffs in this case "allege that they have a contractual right to receive strike benefits pursuant to the constitution of the union," plaintiffs actually allege that their right to receive strike benefits is derived from the constitution and/or promises made to them by a union organizer. Insofar as a contract exists — by means of the constitution or otherwise — that contract may be interpreted by the courts.

2. The Trial Court Could Not Be Precluded by Any Provision in the BLF&E Constitution from Taking Jurisdiction over this Action and Granting the Recovery Sought by Plaintiffs.

This action does not merely involve the internal affairs of a union. It is, of course, an action for breach of contract involving a serious deprivation by defendant-

of plaintiffs' pecuniary rights. It is well established that a state court may and should intervene in union disputes involving property of pecuniary rights of members. In this respect, it repeatedly has been held that the deprivation of pecuniary benefits resulting from binding contractual obligations involves a question of due process of law for which judicial aid may properly be sought. See Am. Jur. 2d § 28 and the cases cited therein. More particularly, where, as in the instant case, the controversy concerns money and property rights, as distinguished from matters of association discipline, policy or doctrine, the members' right to resort to the court cannot be abridged by provisions of the organization's constitution. *O'Brien v. Mutual*, 14 Ill. App. 2d, 173. 144 N.E. 2d 446 (1957).

A declaration in the constitution of an unincorporated association, like that of Art. 10, Sec. 3(e) of the B.L.F.&E. Constitution, (Exhibit P-1), that its obligations to its members are not contractual but moral only, and that they do not constitute obligations enforceable by civil action, cannot change the real character of such obligations. *Robinson v. Templar Lodge, I.O.O.F.*, 117 Cal. 370, 49 Pac. 170 (1897).

Provisions of a union constitution must be strictly construed so as to preserve the rights of members to due process of law in the courts. In *Armstrong v. Duffy*, 28 LRRM 2379 (Ohio 1951), the court was confronted with union constitutional provisions similar to those invoked by defendants in the instant case. Rejecting the union's attempt to use its constitutional provisions to deprive the court of jurisdiction, the court in *Arm-*

strong held such provisions cannot be enforced when they impinge upon a union member's right to due process of law under federal or state constitutions. After citing the Fourteenth Amendment of the United States Constitution and a provision of the Ohio Constitution identical to that of Article I, Section 11 of the Constitution of Utah, the court held that the plaintiffs had the right, *unrestricted by any constitutional provision of the union*, to resort to the courts in the first instance for relief.

Two further decisions to the effect that a court may disregard union constitutional provisions that conflict with duties imposed upon the union by law, include *Ryan v. I.B.E.W.*, 361 F.2d 942 *cert. denied*, 385 U.S. 933 (1967) (7th Cir. 1966), and *Bates v. Brotherhood of Locomotive Firemen and Enginemen*, 56 LRRM 2271 (D.C. Fla. 1964). In *Ryan*, the court held that a union constitutional provision, as construed by the union, was inconsistent with the provision of the LMRDA, 29 U.S.C. § 411 and was thus of no force and effect. In so holding, the court stated:

This claim of the Union, it seems to us, makes a member's bringing of a suit against a union or its officers too chancy a gamble for the member and effectually blocks access to the courts by placing the member in the dilemma of swallowing the grievance about which he wishes to sue (and against which the court might grant immediate and necessary relief), or suing upon the speculation that he will be safe from expulsion by the court's discretion being exercised in his favor.

Congress cannot have intended to burden the protection it gave union members in their right to sue in the 'Bill of Rights' of the LMRDA with the hazard that is clear in defendants' claim.

The right of free access to our courts is too precious a right to be curbed by the risky prediction that the judge's discretion may, like a lucky roll of dice, turn up in favor of the suitor.

The *Bates* case was an action against the BLF&E, the defendant in the instant case. In *Bates*, the court held that neither the union's constitutional provision involved nor a decision of the International President interpreting the same was binding upon the court. Those matters, being in conflict with provisions of federal labor law, were held to be of no legal effect.

3. Provisions in the BLF&E Constitution that would Foreclose Plaintiffs from a Remedy Outside of the Union are Without Force Under Utah Law.

Even aside from the substantial problems of due process generated by the exculpatory provision of the BLF&E Constitution, plaintiffs, under Utah law, may not be bound to adjudicate their rights solely within the union structure. Although defendants contend that plaintiffs' acquiescence to such union constitutional provisions obligates them to so confine their dispute, such an agreement is without force in Utah. A contract of this nature, is identical to an agreement to arbitrate future disputes, a type of agreement consistently held illegal in this state as contrary to the state constitution and to public policy. *Barnhart v. Civil Service Employees Ins. Co.*, 16 U.2d 223, 398 P.2d (1965). The arbitration agreement challenged in the *Barnhart* case was somewhat less sweeping than the contractual obligation which defendants would have the court impose upon plaintiffs

in the case at bar. A unanimous Utah Supreme Court found that such a clause violated the terms of Utah Code Ann. 78-31-1 and was contrary to the governing case law of the state. The court went further, holding that such a clause was contrary to Article I, Section 11 of the Utah Constitution which provides:

All courts shall be open, and every person for an injury done to him in his person, property or reputation shall have remedy by due course of law . . . and no person shall be barred from prosecuting or defending before any tribunal in this state, by himself or counsel, any civil cause in which he is a party.

The majority held:

It is thus to be seen that covenants which prevent a party from having access to court runs counter to both the expressed purpose and the spirit of our system of justice. This is further accentuated because such a provision purports to confer final judicial authority on private arbitrators and tends to divest the official courts of jurisdiction. This precludes them from fulfilling their responsibility of remaining available to adjudicate all controversies to anyone seeking justice. . . .

The instant case provides a circumstance of just the sort of danger the Utah Supreme Court perceived in an arbitration proceeding immune to judicial review. The plaintiffs' grievance in this case could not have been satisfied except at a considerable financial cost to the international union. Yet the defendants here would have the court believe that the only review permitted by their constitution was review by a union officer with an obvious interest in protecting the organization's funds.

POINT IV

APPELLEES WERE NOT REQUIRED TO UTILIZE INTERNAL UNION REMEDIES TO ANY GREATER EXTENT THAN THEY HAD ALREADY DONE PRIOR TO THE FILING OF THIS ACTION.

29 U.S.C. § 411(4) states:

No labor organization shall limit the right of any member thereof to institute an action in any court. . . . Provided, that any such member may be required to exhaust reasonable hearing procedures (but *not to exceed a four-month lapse of time*) within such organization before instituting legal or administrative proceedings against such organizations. . . . (Emphasis added.)

The only “internal remedy” which defendants claim plaintiffs failed to “exhaust” was appeal to the general convention of the BLF&E. However, appeal to the union general convention could not have been taken for almost a year after the dispute arose. (p. 3, *supra*, R. 785) Therefore, plaintiffs were excused by Section 411 from pursuing such a remedy. Further, plaintiffs already have exhausted the Brotherhood’s internal *appellate* remedies.

Article 13, Section 9(a) of the Brotherhood constitution states:

No member of or subordinate lodge of the Brotherhood shall resort to the civil courts to correct or redress any alleged grievance or wrong, or to secure any alleged right from or against any member, subordinate lodge or the organization, until such member or lodge shall first have exhausted all remedy by appeal. . . .

Article 16, Section 1, states:

(b) Should any doubt arise as to the proper construction of any section or rule thereof, it shall be referred to the International President, whose decision shall be final, unless modified or reversed by the ensuing convention.

(c) All interpretations rendered by the International President on the Articles in the constitution, shall, unless rejected by the following convention, be incorporated into the constitution when codified.

Article 13, Section 6(c) designates the International President's decision on questions of union law (distinct from other questions) as "final."

It should further be noted that the sections of the constitution prescribing the activities and procedures of the international convention (Art. I, Sections 10-43) make no provision for presentation of appeals from presidential decisions. There is no indication that plaintiffs would be entitled to appear in person or through counsel before the convention or any committee thereof. The only period during which the convention could consider plaintiffs' case would be during the time allocated to resolutions and motions. Yet Art. I, Sec. 29 of the constitution restricts the period for such consideration to the first day of proceedings and "one (1) hour at each succeeding morning session thereafter." An extremely abbreviated debate before a convention of several hundred union members does not amount to a genuine vehicle for appellate review.

Finally, the convention is a legislative, not judicial body. Article 1, Section 15(a) of the constitution states:

The Grand Lodge, in convention assembled, shall have exclusive jurisdictional and supreme law-making power over all provisions of the constitution and matters that concern the Brotherhood. . . .

These words strongly suggest that the convention is a legislative body in which plaintiffs would have recourse only to political rather than judicial or appellate remedies.

Defendants have further contended that plaintiffs must plead exhaustion of remedies in their complaint. However, none of the cases cited by them contain such a proposition. *Dalton v. Plumbers and Steam Fitters, Local No. 60*, 122 So. 2d 88, 89 (La. 1960) states merely that plaintiffs must make such an allegation. There is no question that such an allegation was made in the course of this action. None of the other cases cited by appellants contain even that rule. Indeed, the federal courts generally have treated the exhaustion of remedies doctrine as an affirmative defense: E.g., *Fruit & Vegetable Packers and Warehousemen, Local 760 v Morley*, 378 F.2d 738 (9th Cir. 1967).

POINT V

DEFENDANTS HAVE WAIVED ANY RIGHT TO LIMIT STRIKE BENEFITS BY REASON OF EARNINGS OF THE PLAINTIFFS FROM OUTSIDE SOURCES, AND DEFENDANTS ARE ESTOPPED FROM ASSERTING SUCH A LIMITATION.

Defendants contend that, under Article 10, Section 3(i) of the B.L.F. & E. Constitution, strike benefits to the plaintiffs should be limited to those months in which

the striking plaintiffs earned less than \$150.00 from outside sources. This claimed set-off has never been an issue in this case. The defendants wholly failed to plead any such set-off and failed to reserve same as an issue to be tried, and, upon trial, offered no evidence whatever to support this contention.

Plaintiffs pleaded, tried and argued this case to the trial court on the theory that the contract between plaintiffs and defendants is evidenced by the oral and written offers for membership in defendants made by defendants during the organizing effort and accepted by plaintiffs upon joining defendants. The record is barren of any evidence that such oral and written offers included any limitation upon the earnings of plaintiffs in connection with the "guarantees" of strike benefits. Indeed, the overwhelming evidence is to the contrary. There is evidence that some of the plaintiffs were advised and assured by representatives of defendants, including Mr. L. L. Iman, who was in charge of the campaign, and Mr. Brehany, the International Vice-President, that the Union had never invoked the \$150.00 limitation on earnings and would not do so. (R. 878-880) Plaintiff Fred Oneida testified that the possibility of defendants' invoking the earnings limitation was an issue raised in the organizing contest by the United Steelworkers and caused defendants' officers to obtain from a large number a long-time members of defendants affidavits reciting that such members had earned in excess of \$150.00 during prior strikes, but that strike benefits had never been denied them. These affidavits were then used

as recruiting tools to induce plaintiffs to join defendants,
(R. 878-880)

The defendants in their brief, at page 41, referred the court to only a portion of Article 10, Section 3(i) of the B.L.F. & E. Constitution, and cited that portion out of context. Read in its entirety, that constitutional provision required that defendants pay to their striking members strike benefits for a period of at least thirty (30) days, and that thereafter "all officers and members of the organization" extend "every possible assistance to find employment for members on strike ." (Exhibit P-1, pp. 197-198)

It is, of course, uncontroverted that plaintiffs were not paid any strike benefit for the first thirty (30) days of the strike or for any other part of the strike. There is absolutely no evidence that thereafter any officers or members of defendants provided any assistance to plaintiffs in obtaining employment. Thus, defendants wholly failed to perform the conditions precedent to their right to invoke the \$150.00 outside earnings limitation as set forth in the B.L.F. & E. Constitution.

Even if defendants had performed those condtions precedent, so as to be entitled to the supposed benefits thereof, and even if there were evidence to support defendants' claim of set-off, defendants have waived and are estopped under the circumstances to assert such a claim. The evidence is uncontroverted that defendants made no attempt during the subject Kennecott strike to determine whether any of its members (old or new, plain-

tiffs or not) had any monthly earnings in excess of \$150.00 per month during the time strike benefits were paid or payable. (R. 878, 898, 929, and 934-935) Defendants admittedly did not disqualify a single member from strike benefits during the 1967-68 nation-wide copper strike by reason of outside earnings during the course of the strike.

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